65,912.

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

)

)

)

) )

)

)

)

) )

) )) )

CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH SHORES, a Florida municipal corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

4

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, ex rel STEPHEN L. BOYLES,

Respondent.

FILED SID J. WHITE OCT 1 1984, CLERK, SUPREME COURT By\_ Chief Debuty C CASE NO.

(Fifth District Court of Appeal Case No. 83-263)

#### PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

PETER B. HEEBNER, ESQUIRE van Wert, Heebner, Baggett, Bohner & Prechtl 523 North Halifax Avenue Post Office Box 5578 Daytona Beach, Florida 32018 (904) 255-1428 Attorney for Petitioner

##

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On the 28th day of January, 1983, Circuit Judge John Upchurch rendered his Opinion in the above-styled cause by issuing his Final Injunction and declaring that Ordinance 82-14 to be invalid. Ordinance 82-14 of the City of Daytona Beach Shores provided for a user fee for vehicles on the Atlantic Ocean Beach within the municipal boundaries of the City of Daytona Beach Shores.

On the 19th day of July, 1984, the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed the trial court's decision with an Opinion that modified the trial court's rulings of law. (A-1-6)

The Petitioner filed a Motion for Re-Hearing, Clarification and Requesting a Certificate of Great Public Interest. (A-7-11) However, that Motion was denied without opinion on the 28th day of August, 1984. It is from these rulings that the Petitioner requests this Court invoke its Certiorari jurisdiction.

The Petitioner seeks the Supreme Court's discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. 9.030, for the following reasons:

I. The Opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with a Decision of another District Court of Appeal to wit: the Decision of the First District Court of Appeal in <u>Nichols v. City of Jacksonville</u>, 262 So.2d 236 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1972) (A-12)

- 1 -

II. The Opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal passes upon questions though not certified, which are in fact of great public importance and will have a great affect on the proper administration of justice.

In this brief, the Petitioner, the CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH SHORES will be referred to as "City". The Respondent, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, will be referred to as "State". References to the Appendix will be made as ("A-\_").

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On June 9, 1982, the CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH SHORES, a Florida municipal corporation, enacted an Ordinance 82-14 providing <u>inter</u> <u>alia</u> for a fee for vehicles entering the Atlantic Ocean Beach by existing beach ramps or through the northerly boundary of the City (R-135-139). At that time there existed an operating beach ramp toll in the City of New Smyrna Beach in Volusia County, Florida, that had been previously validated by the Circuit Court in <u>Buckles v. City of New Smyrna Beach</u>, Case No. 73-2618 (May 6, 1975; J. Cobb). (A-13-15)

At trial, the City made an elaborate record showing the use of the revenues from the beach ramp toll. The testimony showed that the beach ramp fund was kept in a separate account, in a separate bank, and was used to pay for nothing but direct beachrelated expenses at all times. These beach ramp expenses included public works, garbage pickup, cleaning and grading of beach approaches, regular police patrol, and fire and rescue.

The testimony at trial showed clearly that the funds generated by the user fee were used to make beach improvements necessary so that vehicles could have access to the beach as well as to provide improvements which would increase the public's use and enjoyment of that facility.

- 3 -

#### ARGUMENT ON JURISDICTION

#### POINT I

THE OPINION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>NICHOLS v. CITY OF JACKSONVILLE</u>, 262 So.2d 231 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1972).

On Page 5 of the Fifth District Court of Appeal Opinion, the Court itself acknowledges that its Opinion is contrary to the Opinion in Nichols v. City of Jacksonville. In Nichols, the First District Court of Appeal was reviewing a written Final Judgment by the Circuit Court in and for Duval County (A-16-18). The Order by the Circuit Court found that the funds raised from the exaction of tolls on vehicles entering the beach were for purposes that would make the beach safer, and a more pleasant and enjoyable place for recreation. The Court further found that the uses of the funds collected under the Nichols Ordinance were for lifeguard service, removal of refuse and debris from the beach and adjacent areas, providing traffic control on the beach, construction and operation of sanitary facilities for beach users, and recreational facilities including walkways adjacent to The uses provided in that Ordinance were similar if the beach. not broader than that authorized in Ordinance 82-14 by the CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH SHORES.

Ordinance 82-14 says:

(a) After deducting direct costs, the funds will be used to reduce general fund budget expenses for existing beach-related services, for law enforcement, for fire and rescue and public works.

- 4 -

(b) Any funds that are remaining will be used for future beach improvements as follows:

- (1) permanent comfort stations.
- (2) improved pedestrian access to the beach (walkovers).
- (3) acquisition of eventual off-beach public parking.
- (4) landscaping.

The uses provided for the funds in Ordinance 82-14 are if not similar, more restrictive in their use than the Ordinance approved in Nichols.

In <u>Nichols</u>, the First District Court of Appeal reviewed the Order issued by the Circuit Judge and determined that the Ordinance in question constituted a reasonable exercise of police power by the City. In <u>City of Daytona Beach Shores</u>, the Fifth District Court of Appeal declared a nearly identical Ordinance to be an unreasonable exercise of the City's police power.

This is an express and direct conflict between District Courts of Appeal as defined in <u>Jenkins v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980) and <u>Ford Motor Company v. Kikis</u>, 401 So.2d 1341 (Fla. 1981).

The record at trial in THE CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH SHORES clearly showed that all funds were used directly for beachrelated expenses to increase the public's enjoyment of that facility. No funds could be used or were used for anything other than law enforcment regulating traffic, public works necessary to keep the beach clear for vehicle access, fire and rescue for persons injured on the beach, comfort stations for persons using the beach and for direct beach-related expenses.

Wherefore, this Court should accept jurisdiction of this cause to resolve the express and direct conflict between the First District Court of Appeal in <u>Nichols vs. City of</u> <u>Jacksonville</u>, 262 So.2d 236 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1972) and the Opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in <u>City of Daytona Beach</u> <u>Shores vs. State of Florida</u>, Case No. 83-263, July 19, 1984.

#### POINT II

THE QUESTIONS RAISED IN THE OPINION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THOUGH NOT CERTIFIED, ARE OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE AND WILL HAVE A GREAT EFFECT UPON THE PROPER ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE.

There are currently operating other beach ramp tolls in the City of New Smyrna Beach, the City of St. Augustine and by the County of St. Johns. There may be others in force or contemplated in other parts of our state. Based on the conflicting opinions as described above and the conflicting nature of the statements contained in the Fifth District Court of Appeal Opinion, no municipal, county or state agency can impose a user fee for vehicles entering a public beach with assurance of their legal authority to do so. This action will affect each county, municipal and state component of government who has a public beach within its legislative boundaries.

In the Opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal, the Court stated the conditions by which an Ordinance <u>might</u> withstand attack. (P.5) However, in the next paragraph, the Opinion indicates that a municipality may not impose a user fee only for vehicles because that would unjustly discriminate against those persons who decide to drive to the beach rather than walk there.

These contradictory statements place all levels of government in question as to their legal authority to impose user fees on public beaches in the State of Florida and under what terms and conditions, if any there be, that the user fees may be imposed.

- 7 -

Wherefore, it is respectfully submitted that the issues raised in the Opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal are of great public importance, will have a great affect upon the proper administration of justice, and must be clarified on a statewide basis.

#### SUMMARY

•

The Petitioner respectfully requests this Court to assert its discretionary jurisdiction to examine the merits of this Appeal.

PETER B. HEEBNER ROUIRE van Wert, Heebner, Baggett,

Bohner & Prechtl 523 North Halifax Avenue Daytona Beach, FL 32018 (904) 255-1428 Attorney for Petitioner