IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

OCT 29 1504

By. Chief Deputy Clerk

CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH SHORES, a Florida municipal corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, ex rel. STEPHEN L. BOYLES,

Respondent.

CASE NO. 65,912

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JIM SMITH Attorney General

LOUIS F. HUBENER Assistant Attorney General

Department of Legal Affairs The Capitol - Suite 1501 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 (904) 488-1573

ATTORNEYS FOR THE RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts petitioner's statement of the case and statement of the facts except for the last paragraph in the statement of the facts. [BR 3] This paragraph suggests that the beach access fee was used only for improvements needed for vehicular access to the beach. As the district court's opinion finds, the fee actually financed a multitude of services including many unrelated to accommodation of vehicles.

ARGUMENT

POINT I. THE OPINION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT
COURT OF APPEAL CANNOT DIRECTLY
AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICT WITH
NICHOLS V. CITY OF JACKSONVILLE,
262 SO.2D 231 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1972),
BECAUSE THAT OPINION DOES NOT
APPLY OR ANNOUNCE A RULE OF LAW OR
CONTAIN ANY STATEMENT OF REASONS.

Petitioner argues that the decision below conflicts with only one case - that being Nichols v. City of Jacksonville, 262 So.2d 23l (Fla. 1st DCA 1972). Examination of this case reveals that it recites no facts, states nothing about the ordinance in question and explains nothing about the errors asserted, the arguments and theories advanced or the basis for its decision.

It is fundamental to conflict jurisdiction that both district court decisions in question announce or apply a rule of law. Neilsen v. City of Sarasota, 117 So.2d 731 (Fla. 1960).

Nichols does neither. In recognition of this all too obvious fact, petitioner has included in the appendix to its brief a copy of the trial court decision in Nichols and has tacitly invited this Court to find conflict with that opinion. It need hardly be stated that conflict, if it exists, must be found in the district court decisions. Jurisdiction cannot rest on asserted conflict between the Fifth District's opinion below and the trial court in Nichols. Kendel v. Pontious, 261 So.2d 167 (Fla. 1972).

This Court has consistently denied conflict review of district court decisions rendered without a statement of reasons and lacking precedential value. In Mystan Marine, Inc. v.
Harrington, 339 So.2d 200 (Fla. 1976), the Court ruled that a district court's denial of certiorari without a statement of reasons could not give rise to conflict jurisdiction. Such decisions have no precedential value and do not create discord in the decisional law of the state. Following the reasoning in Mystan, it is clear that Nichols sets no precedent and therefore cannot be a basis for conflict review.

Although the opinion of the Fifth District fleetingly adverts to Nichols, its parenthetical interpretation of that decision is certainly not based on anything the First District Court of Appeal wrote in its brief per curiam opinion. That per curiam opinion, stating no facts or reasons, is scarcely the progenitor of decisional discord. For this reason, petitioner's reliance on Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980), is misplaced. That case simply held that a per curiam affirmed decision accompanied by a dissenting opinion did not confer conflict jurisdiction on the Supreme Court. Jenkins did not recognize that conflict jurisdiction could be predicated on a case that stated no rule of decision or reason in reaching its result. In fact, in Davis v. Mandau, 410 So.2d 915 (Fla. 1981), this Court, considering an affirmance without opinion much like the Nichols decision, relied on Jenkins in ruling:

[T]he district court's decision on the summary judgment issue was effectually an affirmance without opinion with which express and direct conflict cannot be established. Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980).

It is apparent that petitioner seeks to revive the "record proper" conflict abolished by the 1980 amendment to Article V, \$3(b)(3), Florida Constitution, with the additional disingenuous twist that it asks the Court to find the requisite conflict in the record of a case that is not even before the Court. The conflict petitioner urges was not recognized under the pre-1980 Article V, \$3(b)(3), and certainly does not exist under the present provision.

POINT II. THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL DID NOT CERTIFY ITS DECISION AS PASSING UPON A QUESTION OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE; HENCE, THERE IS NO JURISDICTION ON THIS BASIS.

Petitioner asserts the Court should accept jurisdiction because the decision below involves issues of great public importance. Jurisdiction exists on this basis <u>only</u> when the district court so certifies its ruling. Article V, §3(b)(4), Florida Constitution. Here, the Fifth District denied petitioner's motion for certification.

CONCLUSION

The Court should not accept jurisdiction over this appeal because no proper basis for it has been shown.